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Goyernment of the District of Columbia
Public Employee Relations Board

In the Matter of:

Metropolitan Police Department,

Petitioner,
and

Fratemal Order of Police/Metropolitan Police
Department Labor Cornmittee,

PERB Case No. 04-A-04

Opinion No. 795

Respondent.

DECISION AND ORDER

Statement of the Case:

The Metropolitan Police Department ('Agency'' or 'MPD") filed an Arbitration Review
Request ("Request"). MPD seeks review of an Arbitration Award f'Award') that sustained a
grievance filed by the Fratemal Order of Police/Metropolitan Poliqe Department Labor Committee
("FOP" or 'Union"). FOP filed a class grievance alleging that MPD violated Articles 24 and 30 ofthe
parties' collective bargaining agreement ('cBA') by changing the work shift of five bargaining unit
members without satisfying a fourteen-day notice requfuement. Arbitrator Michael Wolf found that
ArIicIe 24 of the CBA was violated and awarded the Grievants overtime pay at the rate of time and
a half for unscheduled hours worked. MPD is appealing the Award claiming that on its face it is
contrary to law and public policl,. FOP opposes the Request.
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The issue before the Board is whether "the award on its face is contrary to law and public
policy''. D.C. Code $ 1-605.02 (6) (2001 ed.).

Discussion

Article 24 ofthe CBA, requires that MPD shall provide o fficers with fourteen days notice prior
to making any changes in thei work schedules. Between July 25 and August 5, 2002, five police
officers were given notice ofa change in their regularly scheduled hours ofwork. The notice was not
given fourteen days in advance, as required by Article 24, Section I .r As a result, the five Grievants
requested overtime pay for the hours worked in excess of their previously scheduled shift. The
requests were denied by their respective supervisors. Therefore, on August 6, 2002, FOP filed a class
grievance on behalfofthe five bargaining unit members alleging a violation ofArticles 24 and 302 of
the CBA. The grievance stated that between July 26 and August 5, 2002, the five police officers
named in the grievance 'bere required, without prior notification by their respective supelisors to
work hours in excess oftheir regularly scheduled tours ofduty." (Award at p. 4). Consistent with
the language in Article 24, Section 1 ofthe CBA, FOP argued that the Grievants and all other similarly
situated employees were entitled to "overtime pay at the rate of time and a half' for each hour the
Grievants worked outside oftheir regular schedule.

MPD countered that pursuant to a Congressional mandate, the overtime provisions in the
CBA have been suspended and are superseded by the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA ), 29 U.S.C.
$ 201, et seq. ln light of this, MPD asserted that it was barred by the FLSA liom paying the
Grievants overtime pay at the rate oftime and a half (Award at p. 6). As a result, MPD denied the
gnevance.

FOP appealed the grievance to arbitration. At arbitration, MPD argued that the overtime
provisions in the CBA were rendered inoperative by a December 27, 1996 Order of the District of
Columbia Financial Responsibility and Management Assistance Authority ("Control Board").

'Article 24, Section, "Scheduling", states: "Notice ofany changris to [...] days offor tows of
duty shall be made fourteen (14) days in advance. Ifnotice is not given of changes fourteen (14) days in
advance the member shall be paid, at his or her option, overtime pay or compensatory time at the rate of'
time and one half, in accordance with the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act." (Emphasis
added).

tArticle 30, "OvertimdCompensatory Time", states as follows: "Compensatory time antl overtime
shall be governed strictly by the [FLSA]." With regard to this language, Article 30 notes thal: "fThe prior
Ianguage of Article 30J is recognizcd by the parties to be inoperative as the resufu ofan Order clated
December 27, 1996, from the.former District of Columbia Financial Responsibility and Management
Assistance Authority, that was subsequently ratiJied and approved by an Act of Congress, signed by the
President on July 24, 2001 ." (Emphasis added).
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Specifically, MPD asserted that this Order suspended the overtime provisions found in Article 24 and
A-rticle 30 of the CBA and mandated that overtime must be paid pursuant to the provisions of the
FLSA.. Furthermore, MPD claimed that the control Board's order *u. -ud" permanent by
congress in Section 156(a) of the Fy 2001 Appropriations Act. (Award at p. g). Finally, MpD
contended that the FLSA allows overtime pay only after employees actually work 40 hours in a
workweek or, for uniformed personnel, after completing their tour of duty. Id. g2o7(a)(l).
Therefore, MPD argued that the Grievants were not entitled to a remedy because there was no
allegation that they had worked beyond their tour ofduty. (Award at pgs. g-9).

FOP countered that the Grievants' right to obtain overtime pay under Article 30 ofthe CBA
was not permanently rescinded as a result ofthe enactment ofthe Fy 2001 Appropriations Act.
Specifically, FOP asserted that the Appropriations Act was operative only for theburation offiscal
year 2001, expiring on September 30,2001. Therefore, Fop argued that the language ofArticle 30
which makes reference to the Appropriations Act ceased to be effective as ofthat date. (Award at
p' 7). As a result, the overtime provisions of the FLSA no longer supersede the parties' cBA.

MPD argued that pursuant to Article 30 of the CBA and the FLSA, the Grievants would be
entitled to overtime only if they worked beyond their full tour ofduty. Arbitrator Wolf concluded,
however, that the case could be decided exclusively on the basis ofthe language contained in Article
24, Section i of the cBA. After reviewing the stipulated facts, Arbitrator wolf found that MpD
violated Article 24 ofthe CBA. As a result, he ordered that the Grievants be compensated at the rate
oftime and a half' In view ofthe above, the Arbitrator opined that it was 'hnnecessary to decide
whether Article 30, as originallynegotiated, remains effective." (Award at p. 1 l ). He considered and
relected MPD's argument, cited above, finding that it would render the remedy provision of Article
24 of the cBA meaningless. (Award at p. 15). Therefore, Arbitrator wolf found the time and one
half premium under Article 24 to be the proper remedy for MPD's decision to change the Grievants'
schedule without complying with the fourteen day notice requirement contained in the CBA. (Award
at p. I  7).

'on Decernber 2'7, 1996, the control Board issued an order which'provided that "District
fgovernment] employees would receive overtime onry pursuant to the fFair Labor Standards Act]
notwithstanding any lDistrict of columbia] law, rule, regulation or collective bargaining agre€ment."
(Specitically, District employees were only entitled to overtime after they worked 40 hours of work rn a
work week). This Order was successfully challenged in court by Unions re;rresenting employees of the
University of the District of Columbia. The United States Court of Appeali for ttre oistrict of Columbia
ruled that the control Board's order abrogated the provisions of Article 30, Section I through 5 ofthe
parties' CBA and that the Control Board did not have the authority to abrogate a collective bargaurilg
agreement ln fesponse to the Court ofAppeals' ruling, Congress retroacxively ratified the Control Board's
order of December 27,1996. This ratification was part ofthe Fy 2001 Appropriations Act for the
District of columbia. (citations omitted). see MpD v. Fop/MpD Labor committee. DCR . slio
Op. No. 784, PERB Case No. 04-.4-13 (March 31, 2005).
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MPD takes issue with the award. As a result, MPD filed an Arbitration Review Request
arguing that Arbitrator Wolf s award'bn its face is contrary to law and public policy''because he
relied solely on Article 24 when reaching his decision. Specifically, MPD argues that the Arbitrator
should have applied Article 30 in conjunction with Article 24. (Request at p. 3). Moreover, MPD
claims that the Arbitrator should have interpreted Article 30 in light ofthe FY 2001 Appropriations
Act, which permanently rendered Article 30 inoperative and triggered the overtime provisions ofthe
FLSA. (See Request at pgs. 2-3). In light of the above, MPD claims that overtime must be paid
pursuant to the FLSA.

In the present case, MPD merely takes issue with the Arbitrator's interpretation of the CBA
by asserting that the Arbitrator should have applied Article 30 in conjunction with Article 24. We
believe that MPD's ground for review only involves a disagreement with the Arbitrator's
interpretation ofArticles 24 and 30 ofthe CBA. This Board has held that "[b]y agreeing to submit
the settlement of[a] grievance to arbitration, it [is] the Arbitrator's interpretatioq not the Board's
that the parties have bargained for." University of the Distict of Columbia and Universilt of the
District of Columbia Faculty Association/NEA,3g DCR 9628, Slip Op. No. 320 atp.2, PERB Case
No. 92-,{-04 (1992). In addition, we have found that by submitting a matter to arbitration, "the
pafiies agree to be bound by the Arbitrator's interpretation ofthe parties' agreernent and related rules
and regulations, as well as his evidentiary findings and conclusions upon which the decision is based.
Id. Also, we have held that a disagreement with the Arbitrator's interpretation . . . does not render
the award contrary to law and public p olicy. See, AFGE, Local 1975 and Dep't of Public Works,
48 DCR 10955, Slip Op. No. 413, PERB Case No. 95-A-02 (1995).

As a second basis for review, MPD argues that Section 156(a) ofthe 2001 Appropriations
Act u'as permanent legislation, rendering Article 30 of the CBA inoperative and giving rise to the
overtime provisions of the FLSA. In MPD v. FOP/MPD Labor Committee, Slip Op. No. 784,
PERB Case No. 04-4-13 (March 31, 2005), we previously addressed the question ofwhether Article
30 became permanently inoperative under $156 ofths FY 2001 Appropriations Act. Inthat case, the
arbitrator found that MPD violated the parties' CBA by failing to imple.ment Article 30 after the end
of FY 2001. MPD argued that the Control Board's Order of 1996 became permanent when it was
ratified by Congress in the FY 2001 Appropriations Act, permanently rendering Article 30 ofthe
CBA inoperative. MPD filed a Request for Review ofArbitrator Louis Aronin's award. As a result,
we rejected MPD's argument and found that {i 156 expired at the end ofFY 2001. Id. pgs. 8-10.

The possibility of overtuming an arbitration decision on the basis of public policy is an
'extremely narrow' exception to the rule that reviewing bodies must defer to an arbitrator's
interpretation ofthe contract. See American Postal lVorkers Union, AFL-CIO v. Ilnited States
Postal Service,789 F.2d 1, 8 (D.C. Cir. 1986). The exception is designed to be narrow so as to limit
potentiallyintrusivejudicialreviewofarbitrationawardsundertheguiseof'publicpolicy."'1d.at
p. 8. See United Paperwsrkers Int'l Union, AFL-CIO v. Misco, Inc., 484 U.S. 29, at 43(1987);
Washington-Baltimore Newspaper Guild, Local 35 v. Washington Post Co.,1234,1239 (D.C. Cir.



1971). Moreover, the violation must be so significant that the law or public policy "rnandates that
the Arbitrator arrive at a different resdt." MPDv. FOP/MPD Labor Committee,4T DCR 7217, Slip
Op. No. 633 at p. 2, PERB Case No. 00-A.-04 (2000) (citmgAFGE, Local 631 and Dep't of Public
Il/orks,45 DCR 6617, Slip Op. 365 at p.4 11 PERB Case No.93-,4.-03 (1998). However, MPDhas
failed to point to any clear or legal public policy which the Award contravenes. Instead, MPD
requests that we adopt their interpretation ofthe parties' CBA. This is not a sufficient basis for
overturning the Arbitrator's award.

After a cateful review, we find that the Arbitrator's conclusion is based on a thorough analysis
and carmot be said to be clearly erroneous or contrary to law and public policy. Therefore, no
statutory basis exists for setting aside this Award. As a result, we deny MPD's Arbitration Review
Request.

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Metropolitan Police Department's Arbitration Review Request is denied.

(2) Pursuant to Board Rule 559.1, this Decision and Order is final upon issuance.

BY ORDER OF THD PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RELATIONS BOARI)
Washington, D. C.

July 21, 2005
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Government of the District of Columbia
Public Employee Relations Board

In the Matter of

Amencan Federation of State,
County and Municipal Employees,
District Council 20, Locals 1959 and 2921,
AFL-CIO.

Complainant,

District of Columbia PubLic Schools and
District of Colurnbia Govemment,

PERB Case No. 05-U-06

Opinion No. 796

Respondents.

DECISION AI\,ID ORDER

Statement of fhe Case:

The American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, District Council 20,
Locals 1959 und 2921 ("Complainant", "AFSCME" or "Union'), filed an Unfair Labor Practice
Complaint and a Motion for a Decision on the Pleadings, rn the above-referenced case. The
Complainant alleges that the District ofColurnbia Public Schools ("DCPS" or "Respondent") and the
District of Columbia Govemment violated D.C. Code g | -617.04 (a)( I ) and (5) (2001 ed.) by fbiling
to comply with the terms of an agreement which settled an unfair labor practice complaint. (Compl.
at pgs. 2-3) The Complainant is asking the Board to decide this case on the pleadings and order
DCPS to: (i) paytheUnion all retroactive service fees for all ernployees in Local2921 for the period
October 24, 2003 tlrough thc fust full pay period following March 12, 2004; (2) pay the Union all
retroactive service fbes for all employees in Local 1959 for the period December 15, 2003 through
the first full pay period fbllowing March 12, 2004; (3) provide the Union with a complete and
accurate list ofthe Local 2921 bargaining unit; (4) comply with the settlement agrcement; (5) rnake
thc Union whole for all losses, with compound interest; (6) pay attomey fees and costs; (7) post a
notice to employees; and (8) cease and desist liorn violaturg the Cornprehensive Merit Personnel Act.
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(Cotrpl. at p.4)

DCPS filed an answer denying that it has violated the Comprehensive Merit Personnel Act
("CMPA). As a result, DCPS has requested that the Board dismiss the Complaint. DCPS did not
file a response to the Cornplainant's 'Motion for a Decision on the Pleadings". Also, the District of
Columbia Government did not respond to either the unfair labor practice complaint or the motion for
a decision on the pleadings, AFSCME's motion is before the Board for disposition.

II. Discussion

On July 29, 2003, the Union filed an unfair labor practice complaint against DCPS alleging
that, despite numerous requests from the Union, DCPS had failal to provide an accurate list ofthe
employees in each of the two bargainurg units. The Union claimed that without such a list, it was
unable to demonstrate that it had attained membership of51% ofthe bargaining unit, a prerequisite
to the Union's ability to collect service fees. In addition, the Union asserted that DCPS had
continual$ failed to honor its obligation to withhold union dues from the paychecks ofemployees
who had submitted dues authorization cards.

This matter was refbrred to a Headng Examiner and a heanng was held on October 24, 2003.
Subsequently, Hearing Examiner Cannel Ebb dirccted the parties to submit post-hearmg briefs.

Thc Complainant clairns that in an attempt to reach a settlement ofthe dispute, the parties
requested several extensions of time within which to file their post-hearing briel!. On March 12,
2004, the parties executed a settlement agreement. As a result, on March I 5, 2004, the Union filed
a motion to withdraw the complaint, along with a copy ofthe settlement agreement. The motion was
granted and the matter was withdrawn on March 1 8, 2004.

The Union assefis that the District of Columbia Covemment is responsible fbr providing
actual paynent ofamounts owed by DCPS, after DCPS has authorized the expenditure. As a resuLt,
the Union contends that the District of Columbia Govemment is an agent of DCPS. Theretbre, the
Union asserts that the District of Columbia Govemrnent and DCPS ere responsible for compliance
with the settlernent agreement. In light ofthe above, the Union claims that it is also necessary to join
the District of Columbia Govemment as a pa y in order to obtain complete relief

Paragraph 3 ofthe settlement agreement providcs as fbllows:

DCPS acknowledges that Local 2921 met the 51% membership
threshold prior to January 1, 2001, and DCPS has taken all steps
necessary and within its power to begin deduction of service fee
alnounts for Local 2921. DCPS agrees to pay the retroactive service
Ibes lbr all covered employees from October 24,2003, through thet
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first full pay period following the execution of this Agreement
After that point, any and all deductions of service fees will be
takcn directly {iom covered employees through payroll deductions.

Paragraph 4 ofthe settlernent agreement provides as follows:

DCPS acknowledges that Local 1959 met the 51% membership
threshold as of December 15, 2003, and DCPS has taken all steps
necessary and within its power to begin deduction of service fee
amounts for Local 1959. DCPS agrees to pay retroactive service fees
for all covered employees from December 15, 2003, through the fust
full pay period following the execution of this Agreement. After that
point, any and all deductions ofservice fees will be taken directly from
covered employees through payroll deduction.

The Complainant claims that on 'humerous oocasions since the parties executed the
agreement in March 2004, both counsel for the Union and Micheal Reichert, a staffrepresentative
lbr the Union, have reminded DCPS of its obligations under the settlement agreement." (Compl. at
p. 3). However, to date, DCPS has failed to pay any retroactive service fees for employces
represented by both Local 2921 and Local 1959. (SeeCompl. atp.3)

The Complaint contends that by the conduct described above, DCPS is: ( 1) intertbring with,
restraining and coercing employees in the exercise oftheir rights under D.C. Code $ 617. 06(a)(1),
and (2) retusing to b:rgaining in good faith, in violation of D.C. Code g l-617.0a(a)(l) and (5).r

DCPS does not dispute the factual allegations underlying the asserted statutory violation.
lnstead, DCPS claims that the " Complainant's Untbir Labor Practice Cornplaint should be dismissed
because the complainant t?rils to state an unfair labor practice for which relief could be granted and
[the Board] lacks jurisdiction to grant the relief requested." ( Answer at p. 5) In addition, DCPS
asserts that it has "comected the infonnation in the CAPPS system to ensure payment ofany seruice

I f).C. Code g t-617 0a(a)(1) and (5) provide as follows:

(a) The District, its agents, and representatives are prohibited liorn:

(1) lnterfering, restraining, ol coercing any ernployee in the exercise ofthe
rights guaranteed by this subchapter-;

(5) Refusing to bargain colleetivcly in good faith with the cxclusive
reDresentativc.
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fees and the information was forwarded to the District of Columbia Government, Office of Pay and
Retirement for implementation and pal,rnent. [As a result, DCPS contends that it] has done all that
it can to ensure compliance with the Settlement Agreement, and there is no umesolved issue, or basis
for the complaint." (Answer at pgs. 5-6). For the above-noted reasons, DCPS is requesting that the
Complaint be dismissed.

After reviewing the pleadings, we believe that the rnaterial issues of fact and supporting
documentary evidence are undisputed by the parties. As a result, the alleged violations do not turn
on disputed material issues offact, but rather on a question oflaw. Therefore, pursuant to Board
Rule 520. 10, this case can appropriately be decided on the pleadings. In light of the above, we grant
thc Union's motion for a decision on the pleadings.

The Board has previously considered the question of whether the failure to implement an
arbitrator's award or settlement agreement constitutes an unfair labor practice. In American
Federation ofGovemment Emnlollees. Local 872. AFL-CIO v. D.C. Water and Sewer Authority. 46
DCR 4398, Slip Op. No. 497, PERB Case No. 96-U-23 (1996), the Board held for the first time that
'Vhen a party simply refuses or fails to implement an award or negotiated agreement where no
dispute exists over its terms, such conduct constitutes a failure to bargain in good faith and, thereby,
an unfair labor practice under the CMPA.' Slip Op. at p. 3.

In the present oase, DCPS acknowledges that: ( I ) the parties signed a settlement agreement
on March 12,2004 and (2) it agreed to pay retroactive service fees to both Locals 2921 and 1959.
However, DCPS asserts that the delayed compliance with the terms of the settlement agreement is
not an unfair labor practice. (See Answer at pgs. 5-6).

After reviewing DCPS' arguments, we have determined that DCPS' reasons for failing to
comply with the tenns ofthe negotiated settlement agreement do not constitute a genuine dispute
ovsr the terrns ofthe negotiated settlement; but rather a flat refusal to comply with the negotiated
settlement. As a result, we believe that DCPS has no "legitimate reason" for its on-going refusal to
comply with the terms of the scttlement agreement.r As such, we conclude that DCPS' actions
constitute a violation of its duty to bargain in good fhith, as codified under D.C. Code $ l-
617.04(a)(5) (2001 ed.). Furthermore, we find that by'these same act.s and conduct, [DCPS'] failure
to bargain in good faith with IAFSCME] constitute, derivativel% interference with bargaining unit

2 DCPS claims that it has coffected the infonnation in the CAPPS system and forwarded it
to the District of Columbia Govemment, Office of Pay and Retirement. As a result, DCPS
suggests that it has done all that it can do to ensure cornpliance with the settlernent agreement.
Thereforc, it asserts that it has not conxnitted an unfhir labor practice, I{owcvcr, wc conclude
that it is DCPS' obligation and responsibility to ensure compliance with the settlernent agreement.
ln light of this linding, it is not necessary lbr us to considcr whcther the District of Colurnbia
Government has violated the CMPA in this case.
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employees rights in violation of D.C. Code $ [1-617.0a] (aXl) (2001 ed.)."(Emphasis in original.)
AFGE. Local2725 v. D.C. Housine Authoritv, 46 DCR 8356, Slip Op. No. 597 at p. 5, PERB Case
No. 99-U-33 (1999). Also see, Committee of Intems and Residents v. D.C. General Hospital. 43
DCR 1490, Slip Op. No. 456, PERR CaseNo. 95-U-01 (1996).

Conceming the Complainant's rcquest for attomey fees, the Board has held that D.C. Code

$ 1-617.13 does not authorize it to award attomey fbes. See, Intemational Brotherhood ofPolice
Officers. Local 1446. AFL-CIO v. District of Columbia General Hospital. 39 DCR 9633, Slip Op.
No. 322, PERB Case No. 91-U-14 (1992); and Universitv of the District of Columbia Faculty
Association. NEA v. Universitv ofthe District ofColumbia, 38 DCR 2463, Slip Op. 272, PERB Case
No. 9l-U-10 (1991). Therefore, the Complainant's request for attorney fees is denied.

As to the Complainant's request for reasonable costs, the Board first addressed the
circumstances under which the awarding of costs to a party rnay be warranted in AFSCME. D.C.
Council 20. Local 2776 v. D.C. Dent. ofFinance and Revenue. 37 DCR 5658, Slip Op. No. 245,
PERB Case No. 89-U-02 (1990). In that case, the Board concluded that it could, under certain
circumstances, award reasonable costs.3 Specificatly, the Board observed:

Just what characteristics ofa case will warrant the finding that an award of
costs will be in the interest ofjustice cannot be exhaustively catalouged. We
do not believe it possible to elaborate in any one case a complete set ofrules
or earmarks to govem all cases, nor would it be wise to rulc out such awards
in circurnstances that we cannot foresee. What we can say here is that among
the situations in which such an award is appropriate are those in which the
losing party's claim or position was wholly without merit, those in which the
successfully challenged action was undertaken in bad faith, and those in
whioh a reasonably foreseeable result ofthe successfully challenged action
is the undermining of the union among the employees for whom it is the
exclusive bargaining representative. Shp Op. No. 245, at p.5.

In the o:uies which involve an ag6ncy's failure to impleryent an arbitration award or a
negotiated scttlement, this Board has been reluctant to award costs. See, AFGE. Local2725 v. D.C.
Housine Authoritv, 46 DCR 6278, Slip Op. No. 585 at p.5, PERB Case Nos. 98-U-20, 99-U-05, and
99-U-12 (1999) and American Fcderation of Govemment Employees. Local 2725 v. D.C.
Depattment of Health, 51 DCR 11398, Slip Op. No. 752, PERB Case No. 03-U-18 (2004).
Howeveq we have awarded costs when an agency has demonstrated apattem and practice ofrefusing
to implement arbitration awards or negotiated settlements. See, AFGE Local 2725 v. D.C. Housins
Authoriry, 46, DCR ft356, Slip Op. No. 597, pERB Case No. 99-U-33 ( I 9S9).

' The Board has made it clear that attornev fbes are not a cost.
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In the present case, the Complainant has not asserted that DCPS has engaged ln a pattem and
practice of refusing to implement aftit(ation awards or negotiated settlements. Nor has any other
persuasive case been made to justifo the awarding ofcosts. As a result, we believe that the interest-
ofjustice criteria articulated in thc AFSCME case, would not be served by granting the
Complainant's request fbr reasonable costs. Therefore, we deny the Complainant's request for
reasonable costs.

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

2.

4.

6 .

7 .

3 .

The American Federation ofState, County and Municipal Employees, Locals 2921 and I 959's
(AFSCME) Motion for a Decision on the Pleadings, is granted.

The District of Columbia Public Schools (DCPS), its agents and representatives shall cease
and desist from refusing to bargain in good faith with AFSCME by farling to comply with the
terms of the March 12, 2004 settlement agreement.

DCPS, its agents and representatives shall cease and desist frorn interfbring, restraining or
coeroing its employees by engaging in acts and conduct that abrogate employees' rights
guaranteed by "Subchapter XVII. Labor-Management Relatrons" ofthe Comprehensive
Merit Personnel Act ("CMPA") to bargain collectively through representatives of th,..ir o* n
choosing.

DCPS shall, in accordance with the ternrs of the settlement agreement, fully implement,
forthwith. the terms of the settlement agreement.

AFSCME's request for costs and attorney fees are denied fbr the reasons stated in this
Opinion.

DCPS shall post conspicuously, within ten (10) days tiorn the service of this Decision anil
Order, the attached Notice where notices to bargaining-unit employees are customarily
posted. The Notice shall rernain posted for thirty (30) consecutive days.

Within fourteen (14) days from the issuance of this Decision and Order, DCPS shall notify
the Public Ernployees Relations Board ("Board"), in writing, that the Noiice has been posted
accordingly. Also, DCPS shall notif' the Board of the stcps it has taken to cornply with
paragraphs 4 and 6 ofthis Order.

,o
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9. Pursuant to Board Rule 559.2, this Decision and Order is final upon issuance.

BY ORDER OFTIIE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RELATIONS BOARD
Washington, D. C.

Julv 15.2005

o,,
,. ...:
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This is to certi$r that the attached Decision and Order in PERB Case No. 05-U-06 was
transmitted via U.S. Mail to the following parties on this the 15h day of July 2005

Eileen McGlone Clements
Distriot of Columbia Public Schools
825 North Capitol Street, N.E.
Sixth Floor
Washington, D.C. 20002

Robert Spagnoletti, Esq.
Attorney General for the District of Columbia
1350 Permsylvania Avenue, N.W.
suite 409
Washingtorl D.C. 20004

Brenda Zwack, Esq.
O'Donnell, Schwartz & Anderson, P.C.
1300 L Street, N.W.
suite 12oo
Washington, D.C. 20005

Courtesy Copies:

Mary Leary, Director
Office of Labor Relations

and Collective Bargaining
441 4ft Street, N.W,
Suite 820 North
Washington, D.C. 20001

}-oretta Blackwell, Director
Labor-Management Employees Relations
District of Columbia Public Schools
825 Nonh Capitol Street, N E.
Sixth Floor
Washingto4 D.C. 20002

FAX & U.S. MAIL

FAX & U.S. MAIL

FAX & U.S. MAI[,

I].S. MAIL

U,S, MAIL

Secretary
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